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covers.

In addition to the practical vegetable garden, Lyon made
certain that, in keeping with the size and character of his
estate, there were also formal gardens. At the back of the
house one garden had a masonry seat (still useable) at one

end and two wells to supply water. The second formal
terraced garden was reached by steps from an open deck at
the west of the house. Figure 12 shows this garden as it was
originally laid out and portions of the garden are still visible
because of the stone construction, including steps.

Table 3B. Lyon Site Artifacts. The Later Years: Materials from trash pit used during the time of James B. Lyon II (1858-
1929) and his wife, Anita Thompson Lyon (1869-1921) in the house.

1890-1920 “Gordon’s” gin bottle 3
1891-1910 serving dish, “Gruber-Schwalb, Carlsbad™ 2
1891-1910 whiteware, blue leaves with gold stripe around the center 1
1891-1930 Austrian porcelain plates and cup, “Imperial Crown China” 13
1892-1917 French porcelain fragments, “T & V Limoges” 3
1893-1930 Haviland porcelain dinnerware sold by Van Heusen Charles Co. Albany, NY 37
1896-1900 French serving dish, “Limoges, Van Heusen Charles, Albany, NY” b
1896-1910 French porcelain cup fragments, “M. Redon, Limoges” 2
? thick pieces of marble sinktop 7
1900-1920 mold-created pressed aqua glass fragment 1
1900-1920 whiskey bottles, “Lincoln Inn” 3
1900-1920 bedpan, “Royal China International” I
1900-1920 children’s bowl & plate fragments (German), Jack & Jill nurseryrhymes 6
1900-1920 carnival glass fragment 2
1900-1930 candle holder; clear glass fragment with leaf pattern 1
1900-1930 art pottery fragments; believed created by Anita Lyon in pottery class 24
1900-1930 pressed glass cruet fragment with handle 2
1900-1930 ink bottle, “Higgins Inks” 1
1900-1930 “Maggi” meat sauce bottles; various sizes 6
1900-1930 pitcher fragments, “semi-porcelain, Johnson Brothers, England”™ 2
1900-1930 mold-created ceramic doll head 1
1900-1930 transfer-printed porcelain saucer fragments 5
1900-1930 porcelain fragments, some marked “Selesia” 6
1900-1948 pale green glass bottle; beaver design embossed on base 1
1900-1946 milk glass cosmetic cream jar, “Manly James” I
1905-1925 German art figurine; white, very thin porcelain 1
1908-1927 porcelain dish fragment, “Anchor Pottery” 2
1909-1929 medicine bottles, screw caps, complete 36
1909-1958 bitters bottle & fragment; “Angostura,” J. B. Siegert & Sons 2
1910-1920 porcelain candy dish, complete 1
1910-1919 ironstone fluted saucer and fragments; “Homer Laughlin 48
1910-1930 flower bowl; milk glass interior, beige coating exterior 1
1910-1930 porcelain tray for condiments I
1910-1930 toy blocks, colorless rubber 2
1910-1940 stoneware crocks with brown bands 2
1911-1929 lotion bottle, “Frostilla, Elmira, NY” |
1911-1929 ketchup bottle, “Curtice Brothers, Rochester, NY” 1
1911-1930 porcelain saucer with thin, gold stripe, “Noritake M” 1
1916-1929 ceramic fragments marked “semi porcelain, Blackstone Ridgeways” 11
1916-1929 bottle made of crackled glass, “Wildroot™ hair tonic 1
1920-1930 ironstone teapot with exterior gold flower pattern; white glaze interior 1
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183 m (60 ft) in length (Bennett and Hatton 1988:2)
(Table 1). The longhouse width is not reported but appears
to be approximately 6.1 m (20 ft) based on the floor plan
(Figure 8). The west wall postmolds average 55.9 cm (22 in)
in spacing, 7.8 cm (3.1 in) in diameter, and 29.2 cm (11.5 in)
in subsoil depth (Bennett and Hatton 1988:2) (Table 3). The
east wall postmolds average 71.1 ¢cm (28 in) in spacing,
8.4 cm (3.3 in) in diameter, and 26.9 ¢cm (10.6 in) in subsoil
depth (Bennett and Hatton 1988:2). The authors point out
that gaps along the east wall postmolds may be attributed to
prior unrecorded excavation (Bennett and Hatton 1988:2).
Door locations are not reported. The central corridor, which
is not well defined, averages 2 m (6.6 ft) in width according
to Bennett and Hatton (1988:2), who add that both bedpost
lines are also poorly defined (Bennett and Hatton 1988:2).
Two hearths are located within the center corridor, and four
hearths and two storage pits are located in the bed area
(Table 1). Additional information on this dwelling is
unavailable due to previous disturbances noted by Bennett
and Hatton (1988).

Cameron Site-House 111

The third longhouse at Cameron, unearthed by Rex Lane, is
situated in the east portion of the site (Clark 2004:158). The
only available information on this building is its dimensions:
30.5 m (100 ft) long and 8.2 m (27 ft) wide (Bennett
1999:21),

Cameron Site-House IV

An additional two structures (Houses IV and V), excavated
recently by Monte Bennett and Susan Young, are located on
the west side of the Cameron Site. The House IV side walls,
aligned along an E-W axis, differ in length as the north wall
measures 13.7 m (45.1 ft) and the south wall 14 m (46 ft)
(Bennett, personal communication December 2008)
(Table 2) (Figure 9). The width of the longhouse also varies:
6 m (19.67 ft) at the east end and 5.9 m (19.58 ft) at the west
end (Bennett, personal communication December 2008).
The north wall consists of 31 postmolds that average 6.8 cm
(2.67 in) in diameter and 12.7 ¢cm (5 in) in subsoil depth,
while the total 28 postmolds along the south wall average
6.8 cm (2.69 in) in diameter and 19.8 cm (7.8 in) in subsoil
depth (Bennett, personal communication December 2008)
(Table 2). The north wall post per meter ratio is 2.2, while
that for the south wall is 2.0. The east wall postmolds
average 5.8 cm (2.29 in) in diameter and 10.8 cm (4.27 in)
in subsoil depth, in comparison to the west wall postmolds
which average 7.6 cm (3 in) in diameter and 12.4 ¢cm (4.9 in)
in subsoil depth (Bennett, personal communication
December 2008). Two doorways are clearly visible in the
floor plan, one at the east end, measuring approximately
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Figure 9. Floor plan of House IV at the Cameron Site (Bennett, personal
communication December 2008).

1.5 m (5 ft) in width, and the other at the west end about
1.2 m (4 ft) wide (Figure 9). According to Bennett (personal
communication December 2008), a vestibule is also located
at the west end. Both ends of the longhouse appear to be
square-cornered. Within the interior are a well-defined south
bedpost line, three hearths situated along the central
corridor, and three refuse features (Bennett, personal
communication December 2008).

Cameron Site-House V

Less information exists for Cameron House V as excavation
of this building is not yet completed. The length of the south
(side) wall, oriented in an E-W direction, is 19.96 m (65.5 ft)
(Bennett, personal communication September 2009)
(Table 1). A smaller segment of the north (side) wall has
been identified, which has enabled a measurement of the
width of the longhouse to be 6.1-6.4 m (20-21 ft) (Bennett,
personal communication September 2009). The width of the
central corridor is 2.1 m (7 ft) (Bennett, personal communi-
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located near the midpoint of the outer west wall and
measures 2 m (6.6 ft) in width (Hosbach and Gibson
1980:25). The average distance between postmolds in both
outer end walls is nearly equal: 69.1 ecm (27.2 in) for the
west wall and 74.8 cm (294 in) for the east wall (Hosbach
and Gibson 1980:34). The same is true concerning the
average distance between postmolds in both inner end walls:
63.8 cm (25.1 in) for the west wall and 57 cm (22.4 in) for
the east wall (Hosbach and Gibson 1980:34). Similarly. the
average width of postmolds along the both outer and inner
end walls is almost the same: 17 ¢cm (6.7 in) for the outer
west wall, 13.6 cm (5.3 in) for the inner west wall, and
15 ¢cm (5.9 in) for the outer and inner east walls (Hosbach
and Gibson 1980:34). Also, the average postmold subsoil
depth along the inner and outer east walls is about equal:
26.8 ¢cm (10.5 in) for the outer east wall and 25.5 em (10 in)
for the inner east wall (Hosbach and Gibson 1980:34). The
average subsoil depth for the outer and inner west wall post-
molds is 39.6 ¢cm (15.6 in) and 30.4 cm (11.9 in), respec-
tively (Hosbach and Gibson 1980:34). Thus, the posts
forming the outer west wall on average are deeper, larger,
and closer together than those along the east wall, which,
according to Hosbach and Gibson (1980:37), is evidence of
the necessary support provided by the outer west wall
against prevailing northwest winter winds. A possible wind
baffle or shield, represented by four postmolds parallel to the
outer west wall and located about 70 cm (27.5 in) west of the
southwest end of the longhouse. would offer further protec-
tion to that portion of the structure (Hosbach and Gibson
1980:26).

The central corridor, which measures 27.1 m (88.9 ft) in
length and averages 2.3 m (7.5 ft) in width, contains nine
features (Hosbach and Gibson 1980:26); an additional three
features are located elsewhere in the structure (Table 2).
Seven of the features within the central corridor are
hearths/roasting pits/fire pits, one of the features is a storage
pit, and the other is a stone pile. Another stone pile is located
in the bed area. Both are interpreted as piles of wedging
stones that would be readily accessible to use against
unstable house posts (Hosbach and Gibson 1980:27). The
south bedpost line is 23.3 m (76.4 ft) long and consists of 34
postmolds (Hosbach and Gibson 1980:21,30) (Table 3).
These bedline postmolds range between 6-10 cm (2.4-3.9 in)
and 26-30 cm (10.2-11.8 in) in diameter, averaging 16.5 cm
(6.5 in); between 21-25 c¢cm (8.3-9.8 in) and 66-70 cm (26-
27.5 in) in subsoil depth, averaging 36.3 cm (14.3 in); and
between 11-20 cm (4.3-7.9 in) and greater than 100 cm
(394 in) in spacing, averaging 70.6 cm (27.8 in) (Hosbach
and Gibson 1980:30-32.40). The north bedpost line is
234 m (76.8 ft) and contains 44 postmolds (Hosbach and
Gibson 1980:24 30). These bedline postmolds vary between

6-10 cm (2.4-39 in) and 36-40 ¢cm (14.2-15.7 in) in diam-
eter, averaging 16.6 cm (6.5 in): between 16-20 cm (6.3-
7.9 in) and 81-85 c¢cm (31.9-33.5 in) in subsoil depth, aver-
aging 37.2 cm (14.6 in); and between 11-20 cm (4.3-7.9 in)
and greater than 100 ¢cm (39.4 in) in spacing, averaging
57.7 em (22.7 in) (Hosbach and Gibson 1980: 30-32.40).
The wall post per meter ratio for the south bedpost line is 1.4
and for the north bedpost line it is 1.8. The south wall and
south bedpost line are separated on average by 2 m (6.6 ft)
(Hosbach and Gibson 1980:21). A large support post in the
central corridor between features 5 and 7 compensates for
the lack of roof support resulting from a gap in the south
bedpost line (Hosbach and Gibson 1980:21). Another
unusual discovery is the line of five postmolds extending
from the south wall into the bed area at a 40-degree angle,
which is interpreted as a supporting structure (Hosbach and
Gibson 1980:26). Situated between the north wall and north
bedpost row is an auxiliary postmold line, consisting of 11
postmolds and running 8.8 m (28.9 ft), beginning west of
feature 7 and ending in the west wall (Hosbach and Gibson
1980:24). The purpose of this auxiliary line may have been
for additional support to the roof or bedposts or for storage
shelving between this line and the north wall (Hosbach and
Gibson 1980:24; Hosbach 2006:5). According to Hosbach
(2006:5,29), the dwelling also contains five unequal
compartments, a vestibule at the west (2.5 m [8.2 ft] long)
and east (2.8 m [9.2 ft] long) ends, and a lobby (3.7 m
[12.1 ft] long) near the east end. Within the presumed lobby
are possible bed posts and a large storage pit (Feature 2)
containing abundant amounts of maize remains, all of which
lead Hosbach (2006:10) to speculate that the room is
conceivably a private compartment for the clan mother, who
would be the curator of the corn (cf. Pendergast 1990:25).

Blowers Site

The Blowers (OND 1-4, ak.a. Beecher and Andrews) and
Wilson sites are likely contemporaneous. While Bennett
(1984a:2) dates both sites to A.D. 1595-1625, Hosbach and
Gibson (1980:151) postulate settlement at Blowers
(A.D. 1610-1620) to be slightly later than at Wilson
(A.D. 1600-1610). Situated on 1.2 ha (3 acres), the Blowers
Site contains the remains of one longhouse and possibly at
least eight others (Bennett 1979:1,2). The single structure
was excavated by Monte Bennett, Theodore Whitney, and
other Chenango Chapter members in 1976 (Bennett
1979:25).

The Blowers longhouse is 25.9 m (85 ft) long and fluc-
tuates between 5.9 and 6.1 m (19.5 and 20 ft) wide (Table 1),
though Bennett (1979:6) admits an inability to define the
east end postmolds because of the presence of trees. At the
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Period of Occupation

Most of the points and identifiable point fragments date to
the Late Archaic. Only two Early Woodland points were
found at Mac 5—a Meadowood at NO/E185 and an Adena
(Dickson cluster) found in the surface survey (this point had
been reworked to form an end scraper—item “g” in
Figure 9). No points from later time periods were found. The
Vinette I pottery from the 5 x 5 units again indicates an occu-
pation during the Early Woodland. One might infer from
these data that there was no later occupation of the site.
However the Wickham Incised and Jacks Reef Corded from
the surface survey point to another occupation in Middle
Woodland times. Thus it appears that the occupation at Mac
5 follows the pattern at the adjacent Mac 4 Site.

The combination of the sparsity of the excavations and
our ignorance of a sampling strategy makes it very difficult
to say much more about the people who used the Mac 5 site.
Perhaps the only other clue to their lifestyle is the netsinkers
that were recovered in the surface survey.

General Conclusions

Mac 2 and Mac 3 seem to be much alike in their times of
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Figure 15. Distribution of lithic arti-
facts (except chert flakes) at Mac 5:
50% shading denotes -3 artifacts;
100% shading denotes 4-8 artifacts.

Figure 16. Distribution of pottery
at Mac 5: 25% shading denotes 1-5
sherds; 50% shading denotes 6-23
sherds; 100% shading denotes 24-
109 sherds.
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occupation and so do Mac 4 and Mac 5. All four sites were
utilized in the Late Archaic and Early Woodland periods.
Macs 4 and S were also occupied in the Middle Woodland
period and Macs 2 and 3 were occupied in the Late Middle
Woodland and Late Woodland periods. If the preference for
a stream-side location was paramount to the peoples of the
Archaic through at least the first part of the Late Woodland
period, and if the course of the streams changed, as posited
in the discussion of Macs 2 and 3, it must have been for a
shorter time than suggested there. Accepting a date for the
introduction of Jacks Reef points to be A.D. 500 (Justice
1995:217) and a 500 B.C. date (Justice 1995:171) for the
disappearance of the Meadowood culture there is an
apparent one millennium period of no occupation. As infor-
mation from the other Macauley Complex sites become
available they may throw more light on this apparent hiatus
in occupation.

The Macauley Complex first appears to have been
inhabited about 5500 years ago. No artifacts have been
found there that date to the Early or Middle Archaic periods;
the earliest artifacts date to the Late Archaic. Although there
were Paleo-Indians a few tens of kilometers from the
Genesee Valley (Gramly 1999), they were almost certainly
temporary inhabitants of the region. Funk (1997) reviewed
the archaeological history of New York and the Northeast,
and although he listed a number of instances of Early and
Middle Archaic artifacts being found, all the sites are far
from the Genesee Valley. The nearest are three sites he exca-
vated along the Susquehanna River, some 225 kilometers
from Macauley (Funk 1998:181, 411, 466). Future archaeol-
ogists may find earlier Archaic sites nearby, or perhaps they
will be able to trace the migration of the Lamoka tradition
people from some point of the compass.
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from the unknown outbuilding also provides evidence of the
structure’s former use as a milk or springhouse.

Faunal Materials

Faunal fragments comprise a very small amount of the total
artifact assemblage from the Old Dutch Road site, with less
than 1% of the total. Six skeletal elements (MNU) were
recovered, four of which could not be identified at the
species or genus level. The distal portion of a cow tibia (Bos
taurus) was found. The bone was very clearly sawed approx-
imately 1% in above the growth plate and showed evidence
of having been gnawed. Based on the known fusion rates of
cow bones and the lack of a seam between growth plate and
articulating facet, the animal appears to have been over 2/
years old. An upper molar from a cow was also recovered,
and based on dental eruption rates and its very worn appear-
ance, the animal appears to have been well over 2 years old,
the age at which molars erupt (Pipes 1997). It is unknown if
the bones belonged to the same animal. Therefore, it is likely
that the animal was an old milk cow(s) slaughtered for meat.
Four fragments of unidentified mammal long bone shaft
fragments were recovered, one of which showed evidence of
having been cut with a sharp instrument (Saunders 2006).

Human Remains

Excavations in Unit 1 revealed six human skull fragments
(Figure 11) from a young child (approximately 2 to 3 years
of age). Each fragment measures approximately .35-.40 cm
in thickness, and three of the six articulate. The other three
fragments were badly eroded but all appeared to be related
to the same skull (Saunders 2006). The fragments were
found in context with large mammal bones, including a
possible rib fragment showing evidence of cut marks, and
fragments of a cervical vertebrae and a long bone. The
cranial fragments were not found in original context, as
evident by the 2006 excavation which failed to yield any
additional remains. It is speculated that the remains were
either dug up when the barn foundation was excavated or
dragged to their location by a field plow. The skull frag-
ments were returned to the current property owner for
reburial along Irondequoit Creek. No other human remains
were recovered. According to the RMSC Archaeological
Site files (n.d.), there are two known (previously recorded)
cemetery/burial sites within a 2 mi radius of the Old Dutch
Road site. The two sites recorded by Sheldon Fisher
(Sheldon Fisher 22 and Fishers Cemetery), are both 4 mi
east of the bank barn. The Sheldon Fisher 22 Site is a
Historic Native American burial site and the Fishers
Cemetery is recorded as Undifferentiated Prehistoric
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Figure 14. University of Rochester field school students, Fall 2005.

affinity. Unfortunately, temporal or cultural affinity cannot
be assigned to the subadult cranial fragments recovered from
the bank barn excavation.

Conclusions

Based on the preceding archaeological and documentary
evidence, little can be said definitively about the bank barn
on the Old Dutch Road site, including its date of construc-
tion. The barn was probably cleared of anything valuable or
reusable before it was demolished; hence the paucity of arti-
facts found in and around it. The Old Dutch Road bank barn
itself does appear to represent evidence for participation in
the wider economic and social changes associated with dairy
farming in the mid-nineteenth and early twentieth centuries.
As previously mentioned, the bank barn was designed and
built with livestock in mind, and its presence around New
York State reflects how a “growing number of farmers had
demonstrated that dairying provided a reliable, although
modest return on land,” where traditional crops failed to
grow (Ankli and Millar 1982:208), and the consequent shift
toward the better care of livestock. This information, in
conjunction with the preceding archaeological evidence,
suggests that the Old Dutch Road bank barn was built
around the mid-nineteenth century, probably by Erastus
Ford Sr. However, neither the archaeological or documen-
tary evidence provides a definitive answer, as it is also
possible that it was built by another, later owner of the prop-
erty, William Fowler, who was involved in the local dairy
trade at the time of his death in 1904 (Victor Herald 1904).
Further excavations hold great potential in revealing how
broader social and economic changes such as these affected
the Old Dutch Road site, its early history, and the daily life
of its past occupants.





































